
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 August 28, 2023 
5:30 p.m. 
Minutes 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://dchfa.zoom.us/j/82543136258?pwd=QmtuNmlMY0xicW1LUGRsK0hFQXQxZz09 

Meeting ID: 825 4313 6258  
Passcode: 207323 

--- 

One tap mobile  
+13017158592,,82543136258#,,,,*207323# US (Washington DC)  

+13126266799,,82543136258#,,,,*207323# US (Chicago) 

--- 

Dial by your location  
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)  

• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)  
• +1 646 931 3860 US  

• +1 929 205 6099 US (New York)  
• +1 305 224 1968 US  
• +1 309 205 3325 US  
• +1 253 205 0468 US  

• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)  
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)  

• +1 360 209 5623 US  
• +1 386 347 5053 US  
• +1 507 473 4847 US  
• +1 564 217 2000 US  
• +1 669 444 9171 US  

• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)  
• +1 689 278 1000 US  
• +1 719 359 4580 US 

Meeting ID: 825 4313 6258  
Passcode: 207323 

Find your local number: https://dchfa.zoom.us/u/kedeVexNkT 

 
 

https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdchfa.zoom.us%2Fj%2F82543136258%3Fpwd%3DQmtuNmlMY0xicW1LUGRsK0hFQXQxZz09&data=05%7C01%7CJJackson%40dchfa.org%7C9b2f1222f5f9481919b408dba4d703dd%7Ceb67f93a07b148e59e22c5c1a62bf643%7C0%7C0%7C638285015621802409%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VlqpXO%2BlcDgPelbedKijg3UhOPpGYengGeKVYchMPGM%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdchfa.zoom.us%2Fu%2FkedeVexNkT&data=05%7C01%7CJJackson%40dchfa.org%7C9b2f1222f5f9481919b408dba4d703dd%7Ceb67f93a07b148e59e22c5c1a62bf643%7C0%7C0%7C638285015621802409%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Vnrtt%2F8K5kU6p6%2B2SqHcL5pVNuVv8ULSnHw%2FICNDOaQ%3D&reserved=0


 

I. Call to order and verification of quorum. 

District of Columbia Housing Finance Agency (“DCHFA” or the “Agency”) Board 
Chairperson, Mr. Stephen Green, called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and asked the 
Designee to the Secretary to the Board of Directors (the “Board”), Mr. Michael Hentrel, to 
verify a quorum. The Board reached a quorum and the meeting continued.  

The following members were present via Zoom: Mr. Stephen Green, Mr. Bryan “Scottie” 
Irving, Mrs. Heather Wellington, and Ms. Carri Cowan.  

II. Vote to close the meeting to discuss H.R. Crawford Gardens.  

Pursuant to the District of Columbia Administrative Procedure Act, the Chairperson of the 
Board of Directors called a vote to close the meeting in order to discuss, establish, or instruct 
the public body’s staff or negotiating agents concerning the position to be taken in negotiating 
H.R. Crawford Gardens. An open meeting would adversely affect matters related to the 
Agency. (D.C. Code §2-575(b)(2)). 

Mr. Green called for a motion to close the meeting. Mrs. Wellington made a motion to close 
the meeting. The motion was properly seconded by Ms. Cowan. The motion passed by a chorus 
of ayes. 

The meeting was closed at 5:35 p.m. and re-opened at 5:50 p.m.  

III. Consideration of DCHFA Final Bond Resolution No. 2023-18 for H.R. Crawford 
Gardens. 

Ms. Kadija Sow, Underwriter, Multifamily Lending and Neighborhood Investment (“MLNI”) 
presented the transaction to the Board. MLNI presented its recommendation to authorize the 
approval of a final bond resolution in an amount not to exceed $31,000,000 H.R. Crawford 
Gardens (the “Project” or “Development”).  

The Project site is in the Deanwood neighborhood of NE Washington, D.C. The Project site is 
a mile away from the Deanwood Metro Station and Minnesota Avenue Station.  

The Project will consist of seventy-six (76) affordable units in a six-story building. The Project 
will provide sixty-one (61) senior units and fifty-one (51) units set aside for families under the 
Permanent Supportive Housing (“PSH”) Program. Additionally, seven (7) three-bedroom units 
at the Project site will be designated for grand-families.  

The unit mix of the Project will consist of fifty-three (53) one-bedroom units and twenty-three 
(23) three-bedroom units. The units will be restricted to thirty percent (30%) and fifty percent 
(50%) of the area median income (“AMI”). Sixteen (16) of the units restricted at thirty percent 
(30%) AMI will be PSH units, accompanied by subsidies from the Local Rent Subsidy 
Program (“LRSP”). 



In-unit amenities will include luxury vinyl flooring, Energy Star lighting, washer and dryers, 
dishwashers and microwaves. Property amenities include a green roof, a community center, a 
fitness center, an outdoor terrace, onsite PSH services and parking.  

The capital stack for the Project will include permanent financing in the approximate amount 
of $8 million as a first mortgage loan, a $15.7 million Department of Housing and Community 
Development (“DHCD”) Housing Production Trust Fund (“HPTF”) loan, $21.4 million in 
federal low-income housing tax credit (“LIHTC”) equity, $4 million in D.C. LIHTC equity 
and $2.5 million in deferred development fee. The total development cost is $52 million or 
approximately $685,000 per unit.    

The sponsor team for the Project consists of CRP Affordable Housing and Community 
Development (“CRP”) and MM Development, LLC. MM Development is owned by MED 
AAL Partners LLC and Mutreja Developer LLC. Legacy Real Estate Development LLC has 
transferred its ownership interest to MM Development LLC, and will no longer participate in 
the transaction.  

Other members of the development team will include TM Associates as the development 
consultant, Bozzuto Construction Company as the general contractor, Soto Architecture and 
Urban Design as architect and TM Associates Management as property manager. 

Ms. Sow concluded the presentation opened the floor for questions and introduced members 
of the development team from CRP Affordable Housing and Community Development and 
MM Development LLC. 

Mr. Green asked what role Manna has in the Project. Ms. Sasha Angus from Manna stated that 
the organization is part of the development team. Mr. Green asked if all of the principals of the 
development were in good standing with the Agency. Mr. Jeffery Cooper, Senior Vice 
President, Portfolio and Asset Management, stated that TM has several projects that are still 
under construction and that this is CRP’s first transaction with the Agency. Mr. Neil Mutreja, 
MM Development, stated that he was formally with TM Associates but it is his first transaction 
in front of the Agency in his current organization. Mr. Bruce Finland, MED Development 
stated that his organization had participated in the Belmont Crossing transaction.  

Mr. Green asked what the operating costs per unit were. Mr. Scott Hutter replied the operating 
costs were approximately $8,000 after replacement reserves.  

Mr. Irving requested that general contractors be present for final bond presentations. Mr. Irving 
voiced concerns about alternative plans. Mr. Ari Severe, TM Associates, stated that a 
resolution was unlikely for this transaction but would consider Mr. Irving’s suggestions on 
future transactions.  

Mrs. Wellington asked how AI technology would be utilized with the smart cameras. Mr. 
Severe said he did not know how the cameras worked specifically but that they would be placed 
around the Project to monitor activity. Mr. Hutter added that the cameras had facial recognition 
technology. Mrs. Wellington asked if the facial recognition technology would be used on the 
site. Mr. Mutreja stated that the development team would work to learn more about the 
technology. Mr. Green asked if the property manager was currently using facial recognition at 



any other properties. Mr. Severe said no. Mr. Green asked that more background be provided 
before utilizing facial recognition technology on Agency financed properties.  

Mrs. Wellington asked about the environmental budget. Mr. Severe said the dollar amount 
came from Bozzuto. He stated that the building had been environmentally remediated and the 
rest of the environmental issues would be satisfied by scraping off a couple of inches of top 
soil. 

Ms. Cowan asked why a member of the sponsor team left the partnership. Mr. Salib stated the 
company was in default on another Agency transaction. Mr. Hentrel clarified that it was not a 
requirement for Legacy Development to exit the transaction. Ms. Cowan asked how the 
experience gap was filled from the exit of Legacy Development. Mr. Hutter stated that Neil 
Mutreja had twenty (20) years of experience doing business with affordable housing. Mr. 
Mutreja further stated that he had worked on the original application for the transaction. Ms. 
Cowan asked if Mr. Mutreja had any experience with senior projects. Mr. Mutreja stated he 
did.  

Mr. Green asked who the guarantors are on the Project. Mr. Salib stated it was himself along 
with CRP and his partner John. Mr. Green stated that the restructuring of the development team 
was concerning. Mr. Hentrel asked if the board members would like to re-enter closed session 
to discuss further. Mr. Green said yes. 

Mr. Green called for a motion to close the meeting. Mrs. Wellington made a motion to close 
the meeting. The motion was properly seconded by Ms. Cowan. The motion passed by a chorus 
of ayes. 

 The meeting was closed at 6:27 p.m. and re-opened at 6:43 p.m.  

Mr. Green stated that the change in the development structure seem hurried, but the Board was 
willing to proceed. Additionally, he stated that specific consent would be required to use AI 
generated facial recognition software. 

There were no further questions.  

Mr. Green called for a vote to approve DCHFA Final Bond Resolution No. 2023-18 for H.R. 
Crawford Gardens. Mrs. Wellington made a motion to approve the resolution and it was 
properly seconded by Ms. Cowan. Mr. Hentrel took a poll vote. The resolution was 
unanimously approved. 

IV. Other Business. 

There was no other business. 

V. Executive Director’s Report.  

There was no Executive Director’s Report. 

VI. Adjournment. 



Mr. Green called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Irving made a motion to adjourn the 
meeting, which was seconded by Mrs. Wellington.  

Mr. Hentrel took a voice vote. The motion passed by a chorus of ayes.  

The meeting was adjourned at 6:47 p.m. 

Submitted by Christopher E. Donald, Secretary to the Board of Directors on  
October 6, 2023. 


